

Skye & Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan 2025–2030

Contents

Executive Summary	4
About the Skye & Lochalsh HWWS Collaboration	
Strategic Priorities	6
Priority 1: People and Communities	6
Priority 2: A Stronger Third Sector	6
Priority 3: Stronger Partnerships and Integration	6
Engagement and Participation	7
Key Engagement Activities and Findings	7
Health and Social Care Challenges: Insights from Local Engagement	8
Delivering the Skye and Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan	9
Delivery Timeline	9
How we will Measure Success	10
Key Indicators by Strategic Priority	10
Conclusion	10
Appendix 1: Further Information about the Skye and Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare a Care Collaboration	
Appendix 2: Credits and Acknowledgements	11

Executive Summary

The Skye & Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan 2025–2030 sets out a shared vision for transforming how we work together across the third sector, public sector, and our communities to address the growing challenges in health, wellbeing, welfare, and social care. Developed through extensive engagement, co-production, and learning from lived experience, this five-year plan outlines a strategic approach to building a sustainable, community-led third sector.

The plan focuses on three key priorities: empowering people and communities, strengthening the third sector, and fostering integrated partnerships. It serves as the primary framework for the Skye & Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare, and Social Care (HWWS) Collaboration—established in response to calls from the third sector for a coordinated, strategic body to support high-quality, sustainable services.

With a clear delivery programme, governance structure, and success measures, the plan provides a practical roadmap for implementation and long-term impact, ensuring services are better connected, more resilient, and reflective of local needs.

About the Skye & Lochalsh HWWS Collaboration

The Skye and Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare and Social Care (HWWS) Collaboration was established in 2024 as part of SLCVO's wider Empower Skye and Lochalsh programme. It serves as a strategic platform to strengthen and develop third-sector health, wellbeing, and social care services across the region.

The Collaboration is built around three core components that work together to deliver the Skye & Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan:

- The Steering Group provides strategic direction, governance, and oversight of the plan. It
 monitors progress, ensures accountability, and fosters collaboration across third-sector
 organisations.
- The Community Wellbeing and Support Forum is an open network of local groups, public sector partners, and individuals. It facilitates engagement, encourages idea generation, and helps identify emerging needs while amplifying rural voices in service planning.
- Skye and Lochalsh Council for Voluntary Organisations (SLCVO) manages the delivery programme, coordinates operational activity, and provides shared resources to support the implementation of priority actions.

In Year 1 (2024–2025), the focus was on building strong foundations through research, engagement, and relationship-building. Supported by Community Regeneration Funding, the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, and SLCVO reserves, key activities included mapping existing services, updating the third-sector area profile and directory, and engaging communities to understand local needs.

In Year 2 (2025–2026), the focus shifts from planning to delivery. With dedicated development resources, funded by the Communities Mental Health and Wellbeing Fund and SLCVO reserves, the Collaboration will drive forward implementation of the strategic plan. This includes strengthening cross-sector partnerships and supporting the delivery of community-led projects that respond directly to local priorities.

CARING COMMUNITIES SKYE & LOCHALSH 2025-2030

Vision

A sustainable third-sector health and social care system, where services are needs-led, prevention-focused, and supported by strong leadership, funding, and capacity-building

Purpose

To transform collaboration across the third sector, public sector and communities in Skye and Lochalsh, addressing challenges in health, wellbeing, welfare and social care through inclusive, locally driven solutions

Strategic Priorties



People and Communities

- Promote resilience through early intervention and innovation
- Improve equity and holistic wellbeing outcomes
- Empower communities with accessible information and support
- Ensure equitable access for rural and underserved groups
- Co-design services with lived experience and local voice



A Strong Third Sector

- Build a skilled, sustainable workforce of staff and volunteers
- Foster shared learning, innovation, and collaboration
- Support financial resilience and long-term funding models
- Strengthen communication and signposting across services



Stronger Partnerships

- Co-design services with public sector and communities
- Embed third sector value in strategic planning
- Develop integrated, rightsbased service solutions
- Align strategies across sectors for greater impact

Delivery and Governance

Led by the HWWS Collaboration, the plan is delivered through:

- A Steering Group for strategic oversight
- A Community Wellbeing & Support Forum for engagement and idea generation
- SLCVO for coordination and operational support

SLCVO Skye and Lochalsh Council for Voluntary Organisations

info@slcvo.org.uk, www.slcvo.org.uk, 01478 612921 a Scottish charity SC013885, Tigh Lisigarry Bridge Road, Portree IV51 9ER

Measuring Sucess

- Increased participation and co-designed services
- Improved access for rural and vulnerable groups
- Enhanced organisational resilience and funding
- Stronger cross-sector partnerships and integrated delivery
- Community and partner reflections
- Case studies showcasing impact and innovation

Strategic Priorities

Priority 1: People and Communities

- Resilient Communities through Prevention and Innovation Individuals, families, and communities experience improved resilience and wellbeing as a result of early intervention and investment in current good practice services and new initiatives.
- Holistic Health and Equity Health, wellbeing, and social care outcomes are improved by addressing the root causes of adversity and reducing inequalities through a joined-up, holistic approach.
- Empowered and Informed Communities People have the knowledge and confidence to make
 informed choices and access the right support, thanks to clear, timely, and accessible
 information. Services are more visible, better signposted, and tailored to meet people where
 they are—helping them know where to go and what's available
- Equitable Access for All Communities Rural and underserved populations benefit from more locally accessible services that are responsive to their specific needs, reducing barriers and improving outcomes for priority and vulnerable groups.
- Community-Led Service Design Services are more effective, trusted, and relevant because they are co-designed with communities, grounded in shared research, and shaped by lived experience and local voice.

Priority 2: A Stronger Third Sector

- A Skilled and Sustainable Workforce (paid staff and volunteers) The third sector is supported by a confident, capable, and well-informed workforce, enabling the delivery of high-quality, sustainable services.
- Holistic Health and Equity Stronger communication, signposting, and information-sharing practices lead to more effective collaboration and better outcomes for communities.
- A Culture of Shared Learning and Innovation Enhanced collaboration networks foster a culture of continuous learning, innovation, and mutual support across the third, public and private sectors.
- Fair and Sustainable Funding Models Long-term, equitable, and innovative funding arrangements replace short-term grants, enabling organisations to plan and deliver with confidence.
- Financially Resilient Organisations Third sector organisations are better equipped to diversify income streams and build long-term financial sustainability.

Priority 3: Stronger Partnerships and Integration

- Collaborative Service Design and Delivery Services are co-designed and delivered through strong, effective partnerships between the third sector, local communities. NHS Highland, The Highland Council and Scottish government.
- Trusted Cross-Sector Relationships Resilient and trusted relationships are established across sectors, enhancing collective capacity to respond to community needs.
- Recognition of Third Sector Value The third sector's vital contribution is consistently recognised, valued, and embedded within public sector planning and decision-making.
- Integrated Third Sector Solutions Third sector, rights-based approaches are embedded in public sector planning—ensuring services are people-centred, community-led, and grounded in equity, inclusion, and human rights.
- Aligned Strategic Planning Across Sectors Public and third sector partners work together on shared goals, aligning strategies and resources to maximize collective impact.

Engagement and Participation

In preparation for the HWWS Collaboration and the development of this strategic plan, SLCVO undertook a comprehensive programme of research and engagement between September 2023 and June 2025. This work was designed to build a shared evidence base, amplify rural voices, and ensure that the plan reflects the lived experience of communities and the operational realities of third-sector providers.

Key Engagement Activities and Findings

• Mapping the Sector:

Over 300 third-sector organisations were identified across Skye and Lochalsh, including 172 registered charities and 31 groups actively delivering health and social care services. This mapping drew on OSCR, Companies House, SLCVO databases, and local knowledge, and included a targeted survey to 62 harder-to-reach groups.

Direct Engagement:

SLCVO engaged with 118 third-sector groups through in-person meetings, online communication, and events. One-to-one discussions were held with health, welfare, and social care providers to gather insights into service gaps, user needs, and operational challenges.

• Strategic Participation:

SLCVO contributed to local planning forums including the Skye, Lochalsh and Wester Ross Community Partnership, the Sir Lewis Ritchie Implementation Steering Group, and the Whole Family Wellbeing Programme, ensuring third-sector perspectives were embedded in wider strategic discussions.

• Third Sector Visioning Session (March 2024):

Facilitated by the Scottish Community Development Centre (SCDC), this session brought together key third-sector organisations to explore co-production, shared priorities, and the potential for a local consortium. Participants called for stronger collaboration, shared evidence, and a shift away from competitive funding models.

• Third Sector Conference (March 2025):

Attended by 73 participants (76% third sector, 24% public sector), the conference surfaced key challenges such as short-term funding, volunteer fatigue, and siloed working. It also highlighted opportunities for shared learning, better engagement, and stronger cross-sector partnerships. Feedback showed overwhelming support for re-establishing a Health, Wellbeing, Welfare and Social Care Forum.

• Follow-up Survey (April-May 2025):

A post-conference survey captured additional input from those unable to attend, reinforcing the need for inclusive, hybrid engagement and better communication of outcomes.

• Community Wellbeing and Support Forum (July 2025):

The inaugural forum brought together a wide mix of third-sector and public-sector representatives to review and approve the draft vision and priorities for this plan. Participants endorsed the need for a single point of contact, improved support for unpaid carers, and targeted action on invisible disabilities.

Health and Social Care Challenges: Insights from Local Engagement

Skye and Lochalsh, like many rural and remote areas, faces complex and growing challenges in health, wellbeing, and social care.

- Demographic Pressures: There is a growing number of older adults alongside people with long-term conditions, mental health challenges, disabilities, and neurodivergent conditions
- Geographic Barriers: Long travel times to services, limited public transport, and digital connectivity issues make it difficult for people to access the care they need.
- Fragmented Services: Health, social care, and third-sector services often operate in silos, leading to gaps, duplication, and inefficiencies.
- Inequalities in Access: Vulnerable groups including unpaid carers, neurodivergent individuals, veterans, older adults, LGBTQ+ people, and those with mental health issues—often struggle to get the tailored support they need.

Around 45% of third sector health and social care services in Highland are delivered entirely by volunteers, while others employ paid staff to manage operations and provide support. Each organisation has its own priorities and plans, but many face persistent challenges that impact the sustainability and reach of their work. These challenges include:

- Short-term funding cycles that undermine stability, limit long-term planning, and create a competitive funding environment.
- Logistical challenges of rural service delivery, as long travel times to services, limited public transport, and digital connectivity issues, making it difficult for groups to deliver services across the area
- Fragmented services, where health, social care, and third-sector organisations often work in silos—leading to gaps, duplication, and inefficiencies.
- Widespread volunteer fatigue, as a small pool of dedicated individuals is stretched thin to meet increasing demand.
- Under-resourced organisations, which struggle to sustain services amid limited staffing, shrinking budgets, and rising demand.
- Lack of recognition and equitable partnerships with statutory services, alongside siloed working practices and limited capacity for meaningful collaboration in service design.

This strategic plan directly responds to the complex challenges facing health and social care in Skye and Lochalsh. By fostering stronger collaboration between third sector and public sector partners, investing in community-led solutions, and prioritising inclusive, place-based service design, the plan aims to reduce fragmentation, improve access, and build long-term sustainability. Through shared evidence, co-production, and targeted development support, it will help ensure that services are better connected, more resilient, and truly reflective of the needs of our diverse and rural communities.

Delivering the Skye and Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan

The Skye and Lochalsh HWWS Third Sector Collaboration will deliver this plan through a dynamic, community-led Delivery Programme. This programme will build on the priorities and projects identified through Year 1 research and engagement, while remaining open to new ideas emerging from the Skye and Lochalsh Community Wellbeing and Support Forum.

The Delivery Programme will be overseen by the HWWS Collaboration Steering Group, made up of core third-sector health and social care organisations. The group will monitor progress, review priorities, and ensure accountability. Where specific priorities are identified, resources may be allocated to support feasibility studies, business case development, and project planning.

SLCVO's project team will coordinate and manage the Delivery Programme, facilitate the Forum, and provide operational support to the Steering Group—ensuring the work of the Collaboration is joined up, focused, and effective.

To achieve our shared vision, the third sector must work collaboratively with a range of partners to develop services that respond to local needs and have the greatest impact on our communities. This includes active participation in the development of SLWR District Plans and strategic commissioning priorities.

We will encourage broad engagement through the Skye and Lochalsh Community Wellbeing and Support Forum and its Ideas Submission Process, enabling individuals and organisations to propose ideas that help shape the future of third-sector health, wellbeing, and social support across the area.

While this Strategic Plan focuses on third-sector services, we recognise the critical role of public sector strategies in meeting the full range of community needs. These include:

- Highland Outcome improvement Plan
- NHS Highland Together We Care
- Highland Adult Services Strategic Plan 2024 2027
- Highland Children and Young People's Participation Strategy
- Highland Alcohol & Drugs Partnership
- Highland Children's Service Plan
- Highland Children and Young People's Participation Strategy
- Whole Family Wellbeing Programme
- Scottish Government Mental health and wellbeing strategy: delivery plan 2023-2025
- Scottish Government Self-directed support: improvement plan 2023 to 2027

As we implement this Plan, we will work with existing forums, networks, and the wider third sector to ensure coordinated progress. Our work will be delivered under a shared commitment to develop and implement a Caring Communities Third Sector Delivery Programme that is collaborative, inclusive, and responsive to the needs of Skye and Lochalsh.

Delivery Timeline

The plan will be delivered over three years (2025–2030) with the following milestones:

- Year 1 (2025–2026): Launch of delivery programme, feasibility studies, and pilot projects.
- Years 2 5 (2026–2030): Implementation of delivery programme projects, continual review via HWWS Collaboration Community Wellbeing Forum and Steering Group
- Year 5 (2029–2030): Scaling of successful initiatives, and strategic review.

How we will Measure Success

The success of the Skye and Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare and Social Care (HWWS) Collaboration will be measured against the strategic priorities outlined in this plan. Progress will be reported quarterly to the HWWS Steering Group and summarised in an annual Performance and Impact Report. This report will contribute to wider performance frameworks, including those of the Highland Third Sector Interface, Highland Council, and NHS Highland.

Data and Insights will be gathered through:

- Ongoing engagement with communities and partners
- Feedback from third-sector organisations and public sector stakeholders
- Learning from delivery of projects and services

Key Indicators by Strategic Priority

Priority 1: People and Communities

- Participation rates in HWWS engagement activities, events, and forums
- Community feedback on whether services meet local needs and reflect lived experience
- Number of new or improved services that increase access for rural and underserved groups
- Evidence of co-designed services shaped by lived experience

Priority 2: A Stronger Third Sector

- Number of third-sector organisations supported through the project
- Number of capacity-building sessions delivered
- Feedback from organisations on the relevance and impact of training and support
- Amount of funding secured by third-sector organisations through HWWS support
- Evidence of improved organisational resilience and sustainability

Priority 3: Stronger Partnerships and Integration

- Number of new partnership initiatives developed through the HWWS Collaboration
- Third-sector representation in community planning and decision-making structures
- Reflections from partners on the effectiveness of cross-sector collaboration
- Examples of integrated service delivery and shared learning across sectors

Qualitative Insights Will Include:

- Reflections from partners and community members on collaboration effectiveness
- Stakeholder insights on amplifying rural voices, strengthening inclusion, and supporting underrepresented groups (e.g., unpaid carers, neurodivergent individuals, and those in rural isolation)
- Case studies demonstrating impact and innovation

Conclusion

The Skye a& Lochalsh Caring Communities Plan 2025-2030 represents a collective commitment to improving health, wellbeing, welfare, and social care across Skye and Lochalsh. Grounded in community voice, co-production, and strategic collaboration, it provides a clear framework for action over the next five years. By aligning third sector strengths with public sector priorities, and by fostering inclusive, locally driven solutions, this plan aims to build a more resilient, equitable, and connected region. Success will depend on continued partnership, shared learning, and a willingness to adapt as needs evolve. Together, we can create lasting change that reflects the values and aspirations of our communities.

Appendix 1: Further Information about the Skye and Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare and Social Care Collaboration

Skye and Lochalsh HWWS Collaboration Online Hub

The Skye and Lochalsh HWWS Collaboration section of the SLCVO website serves as an online hub for the region's Health, Wellbeing, Welfare, and Social Care initiative. It provides stakeholders with access to key information about the collaboration's purpose, strategic priorities, and delivery timeline. The site outlines how the initiative supports community-led service development, strengthens third sector capacity, and fosters cross-sector partnerships. It also features updates on progress, opportunities for engagement through the Community Wellbeing and Support Forum, and resources for organisations involved in health and social care. The website is designed to promote transparency, encourage participation, and support the long-term sustainability of services across Skye and Lochalsh.

The online hub provides:

- An overview of the collaboration's goals, including improving service alignment, sustainability, and integration.
- **Details of achievements from Year 1 (2024–25)**, such as mapping services, forming a steering group, and developing a strategic plan.
- Plans for Year 2 (2025–26), focusing on delivery, capacity building, and partnership development.
- Information on how to get involved, including contact details and opportunities to join the HWWS Collaboration Forum.
- Key documents including:
 - o Evidence of need and support for the HWWS Collaboration
 - o Overview of the HWWS Collaboration Project
 - o Year 2 Overview
 - Skye and Lochalsh Third Sector profile
 - Skye and Lochalsh Third Sector Conference Report

Appendix 2: Credits and Acknowledgements

SLCVO would like to thank the Skye and Lochalsh HWWS Collaboration Steering Group for their valuable contributions to the Third Sector Visioning Session held on 6th March 2024, and for their ongoing support throughout Year 1 research and engagement activities. Their input was instrumental in reviewing and approving the vision and strategic priorities of the Caring Communities Plan.

We gratefully acknowledge the involvement of the following organisations:

- Alzheimer Scotland, west Highland
- Counselling Care Skye and Lochalsh
- Crossroads Care Skye and Lochalsh
- Kyleakin Connections
- Skye and Lochalsh Mental Health Association
- Rag Tag and Textile
- Skye and Lochalsh Community Care Forum (Young Carers)
- Viewfield Garden Collective

We would also like to thank the many third sector groups and public sector teams who worked closely with SLCVO's Research and Engagement Officer throughout 2024–2025, and who participated in our Third Sector Conference in March 2025. Their contributions were vital in helping to map the third

sector landscape and deepen our understanding of both organisational and community needs in relation to health, wellbeing, welfare, and social care. Their insights and experiences have been invaluable in shaping the Skye & Lochalsh Caring Communities Delivery Programme, which will introduce a range of new initiatives aimed at improving services across Skye and Lochalsh.

We gratefully acknowledge the involvement of the following third sector organisations:

ACI Recovery Services	Kyleakin Connections
Age Scotland	Kyle & Lochalsh Community Trust
Alzheimer Scotland-West Highland	LGBT Health and Wellbeing
Autism Initiatives UK	Lifelong Learning Hub
Broadford & Strath Community Company	Lochalsh and Skye Housing Association
Change Mental Health Scotland	Mikeysline
Chest Heart and Stroke Scotland (CHSS)	Portree & Braes Community Trust
Community Contacts (Carr Gomm)	Rag Tag and Textile
Communities Housing Trust	Raasay Development Trust
Connecting Carers	Scottish Human Rights Commission
Counselling Care - Skye and Lochalsh	Skye Bridge Studios 123
Crossroads Care - Skye and Lochalsh	Skye Cancer Care
Dunvegan Community Trust	Skye & Lochalsh Citizens Advice Bureau
Dyslexia Scotland – Skye & Lochalsh Branch	Skye and Lochalsh Mental Health Association
Highland Action for Little Ones (HALO)	Skye Stroke Friends
Highland Blindcraft Sensory Services	Sleat Community Trust
Highland Hospice	Tarskavaig Communities Hall
Highland Senior Citizens Network	Thriving Families
Counselling Care - Skye and Lochalsh	Uig Community Trust
Crossroads Care - Skye and Lochalsh	Viewfield Garden Collective
Highland Third Sector Interface (HTSI)	Xcel Church (Keys Project)
Inspiring Young Voices	Skye and Lochalsh Community Care Forum /
	Skye and Lochalsh Young Carers

We gratefully acknowledge active involvement from the following public sector teams:

The Highland Council:-		
Community Planning Partnership	Development & Resources	
Housing	Highland Whole Families Wellbeing Programme	
Infrastructure, Environment & Economy	Social Work (Children & Families)	
NHS Highland:-		
Adult Social Care	Public Health	
Quality Assurance	Skye & Lochalsh Integrated Team	
Highlands and Islands Enterprise :- Lochaber, Skye and Wester Ross Area Team		

For more information about the Skye and Lochalsh Health, Wellbeing, Welfare and Social Care Collaboration

- Visit www.slcvo.org.uk/hwws-collaboration
- Contact Jo-Anne Ford Chief Officer SLCVO Jo.Ford@slcvo.org.uk



Skye & Lochalsh Council for Voluntary Organisations, a charity registered in Scotland number SC013885, A company limited by guarantee SC177372

Email: info@slcvo.org.uk Tel: 01478 612921

30 September 2025